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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executive

EERSRITERAEEN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Matthew CHEONG, Veng-va, aged 54, has been an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company since March 2006. Mr.
Cheong is a chartered engineer. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Science
from the University of Toronto, Canada, a Master Degree of Science
in Automation Systems and Management and a Doctorate Degree of
Engineering both from the City University of Hong Kong. He is also a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, The Royal Institute of
Measurement and Control and The British Computer Society. Mr. Cheong
is responsible for the general operations of the Company including
information technology, corporate communications, human resources and
administration. He has over 26 years of experience in the management

and operations.

Ms. Teresa POON, Mun-chie, aged 41, has been an Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 2006. Ms.
Poon holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts in Architectural Studies and a
Master Degree of Architecture from The University of Hong Kong. She
is @ member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects. Ms. Poon is a
registered architect in Hong Kong and an authorised person under the
List of Architects of the Building Authority. She has over 16 years of

experience in the management and development of property projects.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAI, Yun-hung, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company since December 2006. He has been
appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
effective from April 2012. Mr. Lai is a partner of Lai & Wong, Certified
Public Accountants as well as the managing director of Lai & C.K. Wong
CPA Limited. He has over 32 years of working experience in audit and
tax advice in audit firms, with exposure in listed and unlisted companies
engaging in various industries including banks, financial institutions,
manufacturing and trading companies, travel agencies and solicitors’ firms.
Mr. Lai is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a fellow member
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Lung Cheong
International Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executive

EERERITRAE[BN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(cont'd)

Mr. MOK, Hon-sang, aged 63, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since September 2004. He has also been acting as a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company since June 2005 and
became the chairman of the remuneration committee in July 2010. He
has also been appointed as a member of the nomination committee
of the Company effective from April 2012. Mr. Mok is the managing
director of Cafe Royce Limited. Mr. Mok has engaged in retailing,
financing and property investment and development for over 32 years.

Mr. WONG, Tik-tung, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company since September 2004. He acted as the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company from June 2005 till July 2010
and is currently a member of the remuneration committee. He has
also been appointed as a member of the nomination committee of the
Company effective from April 2012. Mr. Wong is the executive director,
chief financial officer, company secretary, authorised representative and
a member of each of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, whose shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom and an associate member (Practising) of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR EXECUTIVE

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 56, joined the Company in 2000 and is
the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company,
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (the holding company of the Company)
and G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (a fellow subsidiary of the Company). Mr.
Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of Warwick,
United Kingdom. He also acts as a director for all subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lam has over 34 years of experience in auditing, finance
and accounting.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF INFORMATION
OF DIRECTORS UNDER RULES 13.51(2) AND
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

In March 2012, Mr. Lai, Yun-hung, Mr. Mok, Hon-sang and Mr. Wong, Tik-
tung, being the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
have been appointed as members of the nomination committee of the
Company with Mr. Lai appointed as the chairman of such committee
effective on 1st April, 2012.

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung was appointed as a member of the nomination
committee of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, a listed company in Hong
Kong in November 2011.

Save those changes mentioned above and in the Profiles of Directors,
there is no change of information of each director that is required to be
disclosed under Rules 13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
since publication of the 2011 interim report of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
ETERES

I would like to present the results of Chi Cheung Investment Company,
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st December, 2011 (the “Year") to the shareholders
of the Company.

RESULTS

Revenue for the Year decreased to HK$19.5 million (2010: HK$84.6
million). Gross profit for the Year recorded at HK$19.3 million (2010:
HK$67.1 million). Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
Year was HK$16.8 million compared to HK$52.9 million with last year.
The significant decline was mainly attributable to the sale of all remained

godown units in Gemstar Tower, Hunghom, Kowloon in last year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board") recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per share for the Year (2010:
HK2 cents per share) to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 1st June, 2012. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
25th May, 2012 (the “AGM"), the recommended final dividend will be
paid on or about 13th June, 2012 to the shareholders as registered at the

close of business on 1st June, 2012.

Taken together with the interim dividend of HK1 cent per share paid on
23rd September, 2011, this will make a total dividend for the full year of
HK2 cents per share in 2011 (2010: HK3 cents per share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 23rd May, 2012
to 25th May, 2012, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all share transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar
in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on 22nd May, 2012.

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED  Annual Report 2011

AABUSHERBEEERAA ([AAF)E
EMBAR (4B AEE)BE-_S——F
+-A=+-BLEE ((AFEDZEETA
AFRE

Mg

=
E$<

RNEFEZWAR D E19,500,0008 0 (= F
— T4 :84,600,0008 ) AFEZENA
19,300,000 7t (=ZZE —Z 4 : 67,100,000
BIL) AFEZARARAHEE AEMG RN R
16,800,000/ 7T * 1 2 4F 8l /52,900,000 JT
FHBTEATREIERHNEFNEAWEE

SHRLBTERENEEEE-
NUAS
i B

ARREZE ([EFEEBRBEAFE LR
HREBKR—FBIW(ZZ—2F : R _FW)
FTRIZB-—ZHFXA-HEETERRAM L
ZERR - FRREMEN -_E——FRAA-TH
REMZBERBFRE (IRRAEFKE]) it
MERBE ERREIRABEENR _F——F
ANAT=ZAFMREET T -——FX AR
MAREERBEERZRE -

BRRZZFE——FNAZFT=HBIRE ZHHR
SBER—BI —T——F2EFREREREES
HRER BN (ZZE-2F - G§k=11) -

TERERRERTE
RETARLEERREBEFAGREEZRRE
B AREBE T —FRA-t+=AEE_
T-—FRAZTHALE(BREEEMREA)
UERERREEFE AT EERERERRE
FREREE FAEROBPXHEREBARE
WER - E——FERA-+_HTFFHUBE=+
DRARBARRBNEERMDBPS ELE S EW
ERBERAF - ML AEBEFE2ERER28
5% & $B FE 02618 o



Chairman’s Statement

EREBEE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (cont'd)

The recommended final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the AGM. The record date for the recommended final
dividend is at the close of business on Tst June, 2012. For determining
the entitlement to the recommended final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 31st May, 2012 to Tst
June, 2012, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the recommended
final dividend, all share transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's Share Registrar in Hong
Kong, namely Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 30th
May, 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year under review, the financial returns from the loan to the
Chinese Estates Group and certain long and short term floating and fixed
rate notes (the “FRNs") constituted the primary source of income of the
Group, whereas the car parking licence income formed the secondary

source.

Finance and Securities Investment

During the Year, the three-year revolving loan facility up to HK$900 million
at the interest rate of HIBOR plus 1% per annum was lent to the Chinese
Estates Group in November 2008 expired on 3rd November, 2011. With
the independent shareholders’ approval, a new three-year revolving loan
facility up to HK$900 million at the interest rate of HIBOR plus 1.5% per

annum was lent to the Chinese Estates Group on 3rd November, 2011.

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group has accrued an interest income
from the aforesaid revolving loans in the sum of HK$11.5 million.

During the Year, FRNs in the principal sum of about US$2.0 million was
redeemed in February 2011 whereas additional FRNs in the principal
sum of US$4.5 million was acquired in July 2011 and FRNs in the
principal sum of US$1.5 million was sold in October 2011. As at 31st
December, 2011, the aggregate principal sum for investment in the FRNs
amounted to US$13.0 million. Overall, the FRNs brought to the Group an
interest income of HK$5.0 million for the Year. The fair value of the FRNs
amounted to HK$107.7 million as at 31st December, 2011, representing a
net increase of HK$9.7 million as compared to HK$98.0 million as at 31st
December, 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREBEE

BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Investment Properties

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group held 50 car parking spaces in
Gemstar Tower, Hunghom, Kowloon. The rental income from the car
parking spaces amounted to about HK$3.0 million for the Year, comparing

to HK$2.7 million of the preceding year.

During the Year, there was no more revenue contribution from the sale of
godown units in Gemstar Tower, Hunghom, Kowloon as all the godown
units had been sold, in comparison with the revenue contribution of
HK$66.4 million last year.

PROSPECTS

The worldwide economic condition is turning sour and Hong Kong
economy could not escape from this trend. The banking industry tends
to be getting more conservative in making loan to the clientele for
investment purpose, even though the financial market in Hong Kong
is not short of money. As a result, the HIBOR rate tends to be flat.
Notwithstanding the flat HIBOR rate and the prevailing extraordinary low
interest rate under the pegged exchange rate system interlinked with the
United States, the Company managed to obtain a higher interest rate from
the Chinese Estates Group when making a new loan to it in November
2011 by raising the interest rate from HIBOR plus 1% per annum to
HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum.

Overall, the Group takes a cautious stand in the economic performance
in Hong Kong this year. The Group’s fundamentals are still good and
stable. With abundant cash reserve on hand, it helps the Group to
maintain a prudent but flexible business strategy in the changing business
environment. The revolving loan to the Chinese Estates Group, investment
in the FRNs and licensing of the car parking spaces in Gemstar Tower
will bring stable income to the Group, barring any unforeseeable adverse

business and economic development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREBEE

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders of their
continuing support, and my fellow Directors and those who have worked

for the Group for their valuable contribution.

On behalf of the Board
Matthew Cheong, Veng-va

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8th March, 2012
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Financial Operation Review
B & & B

RESULTS

Revenue for the Year decreased to HK$19.5 million (2010: HK$84.6
million). Gross profit for the Year recorded at HK$19.3 million (2010:
HK$67.1 million). Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
Year was HK$16.8 million compared to HK$52.9 million with last year.
The significant decline was mainly attributable to the sale of all remained

godown units in Gemstar Tower, Hunghom, Kowloon in last year.

The securities investments and finance segment generated a revenue
of HK$16.5 million during the Year (2010: HK$15.5 million). For
property leasing, rental income for the Year amounted to HK$3.0 million
(2010: HK$2.7 million). No revenue was generated from the property
development segment (2010: HK$66.4 million) during the Year. Fair value
of investment properties was increased by HK$5.0 million for the Year

whereas there was no change in fair value in last year.

Earnings per share for the Year recorded at HK4.97 cents (2010: HK15.63

cents).

NET ASSET VALUE

At 31st December, 2011, the Group's net assets attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$1,054.4 million as compared to
HK$1,049.4 million in preceding year. The movement in net assets was
mainly due to the profit retained for the Year and payments of 2010 final
dividends and 2011 interim dividends of HK$10.2 million. Net asset value

per share to owners of the Company was HK$3.11 (2010: HK$3.10).

DEBT AND GEARING

At 31st December, 2011, time deposits, bank balances and cash
amounted to HK$12.3 million (2010: HK$28.5 million).

The Group did not have any bank borrowings as at 31st December, 2011
(2010: Nil). The Group's income for the Year was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars and no hedging for non-Hong Kong
dollars assets or investments had been made during the Year.
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Financial Operation Review

WS R & B R

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's investment, assets and liabilities are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars and no hedging has been

made during the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December, 2011 and 2010, no assets were pledged by the Group
to secure any banking facilities and the Group did not have any obligations

under banking facility documentation.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material capital commitments and contingent
liabilities as at 31st December, 2011 and 2010.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income for the Year increased slightly to HK$16.6 million (2010:
HK$15.5 million) within which included imputed interest income from
floating and fixed rate notes of HK$0.6 million (2010: HK$0.6 million).

No interest expenses were recorded for the years ended 31st December,
2011 and 2010.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

During the Year, all the employees under the Group were transferred to
fellow subsidiaries and as at 31st December, 2011, the Group did not
employ any staff (2010: 7 staff). Employees were remunerated on the
basis of their performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Remuneration packages comprised salary and year-end discretionary
bonus based on market conditions and individual performance. During
the Year, the Group's staff costs excluding directors’ emoluments of
approximately HK$1.3 million were recharged by the fellow subsidiaries of

the Company.

No share option scheme was adopted for the Year.
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Financial Operation Review
B i§ 48 & B R

PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation has been carried out by B.l. Appraisals Limited
("B.I. Appraisals”), independent qualified professional valuers, in respect
of the Group's investment properties as at 31st December, 2011 and it
was used in preparing 2011 final results. Property valuation as at 31st
December, 2010 was also carried out by B.l. Appraisals. The valuation
was based on either direct comparison approach assuming the property
is capable of being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets, or investment method by taking into
account the current passing rents and the reversionary income potential of

the property.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$34.4 million as
at 31st December, 2011 (2010: HK$29.4 million), an increase in fair
value of HK$5.0 million (2010: Nil) was recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income for the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERREE

OBJECTIVE

The Board of Directors (the “Directors” or the “Board") of the Company
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance so as to ensure high transparency
and protection of shareholders’ interests in general. The Board endeavours
to ensure effective self-regulatory practices, to maintain sound internal

control system and to absorb high calibre members to the Board.

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Report is to present to
shareholders how the Company has applied the principles in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout
the year ended 31st December, 2011 (the “Year").

ADOPTED CODES

Since 2005, the Company has adopted the code provisions and
certain recommended best practices set out in the CG Code to
enhance corporate governance in the interests of the Company and its

shareholders.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") contained
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules which may be revised from time
to time as a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. In addition, the Company has a separate written code of
conduct on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for the relevant
employees of the Company who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information in respect of their dealings in the

securities of the Company (the “Employees’ Code").
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Structure

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)"). The INEDs
represent more than one-third members of the Board. The Directors'
biographies are available on the Company's website. There is no
relationship among members of the Board and in particular, between
the chairman and the chief executive officer. The INEDs are highly
experienced professionals and businessmen with a broad range
of expertise and experience in accounting, finance and business
management and two of them have appropriate professional accounting

qualification as required by the Stock Exchange.

The Board is responsible for directing and supervising the Company's
affairs. Each Director acts in good faith for the best interest of the
Company. The Directors are collectively and individually responsible to
the Company for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are
managed, controlled and operated. They had devoted sufficient time and

attention to the Company'’s affairs during the Year.

All the Directors, including the INEDs, must retire by rotation at least
once every three years, and no director shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Director's appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election at the annual general
meeting, under the articles of association of the Company. As such, the
term of office of each Director has been specified under the Company's

Articles of Association.

Assistance to Directors in Decision Making

Throughout their period in office, the Directors have been informed
of the Group's business, the competitive and regulatory environments
in which it operates and other changes affecting the Group and the
industry it operates in as a whole. They have also been advised on
appointment of their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of
a listed company and updated on changes to the legal and governance

requirements of the Group and upon themselves as the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

hRERBES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Assistance to Directors in Decision Making (cont'd)

The Directors are given access to the secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) or independent professionals for advice at the
Company's expense, when they deem it is necessary in order for them to

carry out their responsibilities from time to time.

To enhance the Directors’ consciousness on the importance of the
directors’ duties under common law and to comply with the requirement
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), a "Guide on
Directors’ Duties” in which the general principles a director should follow
in the performance of his/her functions and exercise of his/her powers

was distributed to the Directors.

Conduct of Meetings

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be
included in the meeting agenda. The Board is supplied with relevant
information as well as reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Group before each regular Board meeting. At least
14 days’ notice of a regular Board meeting is given to all Directors to
provide them with the opportunity to attend the meeting. Board papers
are dispatched to all Directors at least 3 days before the meeting to
ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and will be
adequately prepared for the meeting. Senior management is invited
to attend the meeting to address to the Board members' queries. This
enables the Board to have pertinent data and insight for a comprehensive

and informed evaluation as part of the Board's decision-making purpose.

The Chairman has delegated the responsibility to the Company Secretary
for drawing up and approving the meeting's agenda for each Board
meeting, taking into account of any matter proposed by the other

Directors for inclusion in the agenda.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally monitored
by the Chairman who would ensure that sufficient time is allocated
for discussion and consideration of each item on the agenda. Equal
opportunities are given to each Director to express his/her views and

concerns.

Each Director has to declare his/her interest and to abstain from voting on
any board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a
material interest pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association and the

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong).
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board's procedures, rules and regulations are
followed. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting in
sufficient details are sent to the Directors for comments and records
within reasonable time after the meeting is held. The minutes of Board
meetings and of the Board committees’ meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary, which are open for inspection by the Directors on

reasonable notice.

Three Board meetings were held on 15th March, 8th August and 6th
December for the Year. The Company Secretary and the Company's senior
management had attended the Board meetings to report matters arising
from corporate governance, risk management, statutory compliance,
accounting, finance and business. The individual attendance of each

Director at the Board meetings held during the Year is as follows:

No. of Board meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Directors attendance in total)
Executive Directors
Mr. Matthew Cheong, Veng-va (Chairman)
Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie (Chief Executive Officer)

3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai, Yun-hung 3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)

3/3 (100%)

Mr. Mok, Hon-sang
Mr. Wong, Tik-tung

Works Performed

During the Year, besides attending the Board meetings to consider and
make decision on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business matters, the Directors had
brought independent opinion and judgment on the Company's strategy,
performance and standards of conduct; had taken the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arose; had served on Board committees;
had ensured that the Board maintained high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting; carried out reviews on matters reported by the
Board committees, and had provided adequate checks and balance to
safeguard the interests of shareholders in general and the Company as a

whole.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Works Performed (cont'd)
During the Year, the INEDs had actively participated in the Board meetings,
brought independent judgment and given their comments to the

information or reports submitted to the meetings.

Besides attending the Board or committee meetings, in order to make
timely decision and have effective implementation of the Company's
policy and practice, the Board had also adopted written resolutions signed

by all Directors to make decision on corporate affairs from time to time.

As part of the continuing process on supervising the Company's affairs,
the Directors, acting through by the Audit Committee, had reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the Company's
accounting staff and financial reporting function (which is being performed
by the accounting staff of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Estates”), the holding company), and their training programmes and
budget in December 2011.

Directors’ Confirmation
The Company has received, from each INED, an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The

Company considers that all of the INEDs are independent.

Besides, having made specific enquiry of all Directors and the relevant
employees, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the relevant employees
had complied with the Employees’ Code regarding securities transaction

throughout the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ")
are separate and not performed by the same individual. Mr. Matthew
Cheong, Veng-va is the Chairman with responsibility for overseeing the
function of the Board, formulating overall strategies and policies of the
Company. Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie is the CEO with responsibility for
the overall business and operation of the Group. This segregation is clearly
established and set out in writing to ensure a clear distinction between the
Chairman'’s responsibility to manage the Board and CEQ's responsibility to

manage the Group's business.
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Corporate Governance Report

hRERBES

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee with defined roles and terms of reference. A Nomination
Committee has also been formed and will commence functioning on 1st

April, 2012.

Audit Committee

Structure

The Audit Committee has been established since December 2000
with the roles to assist the Board in establishing formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial reporting
and the internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company's external auditors (the “Independent
Auditors”). It acts in an advisory capacity and makes recommendations to

the Board.

All the Audit Committee members possess diversified industry experience.
The Chairman has appropriate professional qualification, accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is made up of the INEDs, namely:

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung (Chairman)
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung
Mr. Mok, Hon-sang

Function
The Audit Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the Group's

website. The major duties of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Company's Independent
Auditors, review and monitor their independence and objectivity as

well as the effectiveness of the audit process;

i) to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to
review any significant financial reporting judgments contained in

them; and

i)  to review and ensure the effectiveness of the Company's financial

control, internal control and risk management systems.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRES

BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice each year. The Company
prepares and delivers an information memorandum that includes
all relevant information about the meetings to the Audit Committee
members at least 3 days prior to such meetings. During the Year, the Audit
Committee members reviewed the information memorandum with due
care and discussed with the Group Financial Controller (who is also the
Company Secretary) and other senior management (if necessary) during

the meetings.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings on 10th March,
4th August and 6th December, 2011 with the presence of the Company's
senior management. Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary were
circulated to the Audit Committee members for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting. Executed minutes were kept by the
Company Secretary and copies of the minutes were sent to the Audit

Committee members for records.

Individual attendance of each committee member at the meetings is as

follows:
No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Members attendance in total)

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung (Chairman)
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung

2/3 (66.67%)
3/3 (100%)

Mr. Mok, Hon-sang 3/3 (100%)

Works Performed

The works performed by the members of Audit Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

) reviewed and considered the Group accounts and financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2010 and interim

accounts for 2011;

i reviewed, discussed and agreed with the Independent Auditors
in respect of the audit fee for the year 2011; the terms of the
engagement letters; the nature, scope of audit and reporting

obligations for the Year;
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Corporate Governance Report

hRERBES

BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Works Performed (cont'd)
i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's financial reporting and controls, internal control procedures

and risk management systems;

iv)  reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the

progress of compliance of the CG Code;

v)  carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions
of the Company (including those not having been made public
and fallen outside Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules, if any) and
their financial implication in their capacity as members of the

independent board committee;

vi)  reviewed the performance of the properties of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2010;

vii)  reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of the staff in accounting and financial reporting function, and the

training programmes and budget;

vii) in their capacity as members of independent board committee,
gave an independent advice to the independent shareholders of the
Company in respect of a new revolving loan facility up to HK$900

million from the Company to the Chinese Estates Group; and

ix)  prepared and submitted to the Board an Audit Committee Report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year, presented its findings and made recommendations for

consideration by the Board.

On 6th March, 2012, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group's

accounts and draft financial statements for the Year.

Overall, the Audit Committee is satisfied with the condition of the
Company, including the corporate governance practices, internal control
system, the conduct of the continuing connected transactions and
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff in
accounting and financial reporting function (which is being performed by
the accounting staff of Chinese Estates, the holding company), and the

training programmes and budget.
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Corporate Governance Report

hRERBES

BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Works Performed (cont'd)

In light of the recent amendments to the Listing Rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Board had on 8th March, 2012 approved the amendments
of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee which will become
effective on 1st April, 2012. Details of the works performed by the Audit
Committee to comply with the new requirements under the Listing Rules
will be given in the corporate governance report for the financial year
ending 31st December, 2012.

Remuneration Committee

Structure

The Remuneration Committee has been established since June 2005
with the role to assist the Board in reviewing and determining the
framework or broad policy for remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management, overseeing any major changes in employee benefit

structures and considering other topics as defined by the Board.
The Remuneration Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Mok, Hon-sang (Chairman)
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung
Mr. Wong, Tik-tung

Function
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:

D) setting, reviewing and recommending to the Board for approving the

Group's overall remuneration policy and strategy;

i)  setting, reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
and individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors
and senior management including terms and conditions of
employment as well as compensation payable due to loss or

termination of office, and dismissal or removal for misconduct; and

i) recommending the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

Function (cont'd)
The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the

Group's website.

The Remuneration Committee would consult the Chairman and/or the
CEO about its proposals on remuneration of other Executive Directors and

seek internal and external professional advices if considered necessary.

Conduct of Meetings

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings on
10th March and 4th August, 2011 to discuss and ratify the payment
of discretionary bonus for the year ended 31st December, 2010 to
employees of the Company; and to consider and approve the annual

remuneration of the Executive Directors for the Year.

Individual attendance of each committee member at the meetings is as

follows:
No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Members attendance in total)

Mr. Mok, Hon-sang (Chairman)
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung
Mr. Wong, Tik-tung

2/2 (100%)
2/2 (100%)
1/2 (50%)

The INEDs are not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office
as the INEDs except for their entittement of an annual remuneration of
HK$180,000 determined by the Board subject to annual review with
reference to the prevailing market condition. No share option scheme is

adopted by the Company during the Year.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee had carried out a review
on the remuneration of the Executive Directors. After review, each of the
Executive Directors (namely Mr. Matthew Cheong, Veng-va and Ms. Teresa
Poon, Mun-chie) agreed to receive a remuneration of HK$10,000 per
annum on a nominal basis without making reference to the prevailing

market condition.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)

In light of the recent amendments to the Listing Rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Board had on 8th March, 2012 approved the amendments
of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which will
become effective on st April, 2012. Details of the works performed
by the Remuneration Committee to comply with the new requirements
under the Listing Rules will be given in the corporate governance report

for the financial year ending 31st December, 2012.
Nomination Committee

No Nomination Committee was established in view of the business
requirement of the Company for the Year. During the Year, the Board was
responsible for reviewing its composition, identifying and selecting suitable
Board members, assessing independence of the INEDs, considering
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors. The Board would exercise its power under Article 92
of the Articles of Association of the Company to appoint any person as
a director either to fill as casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board

whenever the business of the Company requires.

In light of the recent amendments to the Listing Rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Board had on 8th March, 2012 approved the formation of
the Nomination Committee which will start functioning on 1st April, 2012
with its members constituted by all the INEDs. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee was also adopted which will become effective
on 1st April, 2012. Details of the works performed by the Nomination
Committee to comply with the new requirements under the Listing Rules
will be given in the corporate governance report for the financial year
ending 31st December, 2012.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Executive Directors have defined clear directions on powers of
management and delegate daily management and administration
functions to the management. The functions reserved to the Board and
those delegated to the senior management are reviewed from time to
time. The Company would formalize the division of responsibility between
the Board and the management when the operational requirement of the

Group justifies such division.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng (“HLB") were re-appointed as the
Independent Auditors by shareholders at the 2011 annual general
meeting of the Company. In order to maintain the independence and
objectivity of the Independent Auditors (which for these purposes include
any entity under common control, ownership or management with the
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party having
knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably conclude as part
of the audit firm nationally or internationally), they will not be engaged for

non-audit work unless it has been pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

Independent Auditors were engaged on an ad hoc basis to supply non-
audit service, such as to provide a confirmation letter to the Board and
to the Stock Exchange to confirm, among others, that the continuing
connected transactions have not exceeded the stipulated cap for the
transactions as required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the Year. The fundamental policy is to ensure that the engagement
of the Independent Auditors for non-audit service will not harm their
independence or cause any bias on audit works for the presentation of
financial statements of the Group. During the Year, the fee for engaging
Independent Auditors to carry out the works in connection with annual

review of the continuing connected transactions amounted to HK$20,000.

At the annual general meeting held on 26th May, 2011, HLB were
re-appointed by the shareholders as the Independent Auditors of the
Company at a fee to be agreed with the Board. The Audit Committee
reviewed the terms of engagement letter of HLB in December 2011 and
agreed with HLB the audit fees for auditing the financial statements of the
Group for the Year at HK$220,000.

The accounts for the Year were audited by HLB whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. In March 2012, the
practice of HLB as partnership has been reorganized as HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has recommended to the
Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will be nominated for
appointment as the new auditors of the Company at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of its financial position and prospects. Financial results are
announced as early as possible, with interim report and annual report
as well as other price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures
published as required under the Listing Rules.

The management provides explanation, information and progress update
to the Board for it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other issues put before the Board for approval and consideration.

Throughout the Year, the Directors had selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial accounts of the Group which
give a true and fair view and are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A statement by the Independent Auditors about their
reporting responsibilities for the Year is set out in this annual report.

The Independent Auditors did not report for the Year that there were
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Scope of Works

The Board recognizes its responsibility for establishment, maintenance and
review of the internal control system that provides reasonable assurance
on the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information,
effective and efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and compliance
with laws and regulations. The internal control system is designed to
manage rather than to eliminate all risks of failure while its goal is to
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance regarding the achievement
of organizational objectives. The Audit Committee is responsible to assist
the Board for the annual review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.

With respect to procedures and internal control for handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company is aware of
its obligations under the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
information which is expected to be price-sensitive should be announced
promptly after it becomes known to and/or is the subject of a decision
by the Directors or senior management of the Company, and conducts
its affairs with close regard to the “Guide on disclosure of price-sensitive
information” issued by the Stock Exchange.

To ensure sufficient resources provided to the Audit Committee,
information and assessment of financial and internal controls, risk
management systems were sent to the Audit Committee members.
Internal control procedures of the Group had been commented by the
committee members during the Year.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)

Audit Committee’s Review

The Audit Committee had reviewed the financial control, internal control
and risk management systems of the Company for the Year. It considered
the internal control system effective and adequate as they allowed the
Board to monitor the Group's overall financial position and to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against unauthorized
use or material financial misstatement; transactions were executed in
accordance with management's authorization; and the accounting records
were reliable for preparing financial information used within the business
or for publication and reflecting accountability for assets and liabilities.
Further reviews will be conducted on the request of any Audit Committee
member, the Group Financial Controller, Company Secretary, or any

Director.

The Audit Committee considered that the careful management of risk as
a key management activity and concluded that the business risks, which
could be strategic, operational, reputation-related or financial, should be
understood and visible. The Board acknowledges the areas of concern
and would devote to in-depth study with senior management in each

situation about the level of acceptable risk and controls.

The Audit Committee and the Board considered that the Company had
complied with the code provisions on internal control during the Year, and

the internal control system is effective and adequate, as

) a framework of prudent and effective control has been established

to enable risks to be identified, evaluated and managed; and

i) periodic review of the system of the internal control is carried out by

the Audit Committee to ensure the effectiveness of such control.

Internal Audit Function
The Company has established an internal audit function with the key tasks

as below:

) assess and monitor internal control of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any level of management whenever it

considers necessary;

i)  conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
procedures, incomes and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

i) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company is committed to safeguarding the shareholders’ and the
Company's interests as a whole and encourages shareholders to attend
general meetings of the shareholders to participate in the important
decisions of the Company for which the shareholders’ approval is required
under the Listing Rules and the Companies Ordinance. The Company
regards general meetings of the shareholders as an important event as
it provides an important opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Directors, including the INEDs
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting and
extraordinary general meeting held in May 2011 and October 2011
respectively. The Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, the Independent Auditors and the Chairman of the
independent board committee were also available at the general meetings

to address shareholders’ queries.

With the implementation of poll voting in lieu of show of hands at all
general meetings of the listed company, the shareholders can fully reflect
their proprietary rights and interests by means of poll voting which is
regarded as a fairer method of determination on business matters by the
shareholders than voting on a show of hands at the general meetings.
Notice of the annual general meeting, together with the annual report and
circular, was sent to the shareholders more than 20 clear business days
before the meeting whereas notice of the extraordinary general meeting
together with circular, was sent to the shareholders more than 10 clear
business days before the meeting. These can allow more time for the
shareholders to digest information in the annual report and circulars, and

to consider whether joining the meetings or not.

The Chairman of the Board and the CEO, when acting as the Chairman
of the annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting held
on 26th May, 2011 and on 28th October, 2011 respectively, took the
initiative to demand for a poll at the commencement of the meetings
and explained the detailed procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders. All resolutions were put to vote and passed by poll under
the scrutiny of the independent share registrar. The poll results were made
public by means of public announcements which were uploaded to the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Statutory announcements, financial and other information of the Group

are made available on the Company's website, which is regularly updated.

Shareholders may put their enquires to the Board and also put forward
proposals at general meetings by way of a written notice addressed to the

Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good
corporate governance and, in this regard, timely communication with the
shareholders, including institutional investors, is crucial. The Company
considers good investor relations as a key part of its operations and
continues to promote investor relations and enhances communications

with the investors.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.chicheung.com) to
make the corporate information available on the internet to facilitate its
communication with shareholders and to provide important information
to the investing public on corporate governance structure, policies and
systems, profiles of the Directors and senior management as well as terms

of reference of Board committees.

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders,
and invites them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the

Investor Relations Team at investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Since 2005, the Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the CG Code to enhance corporate governance in the interests of the

Company and its shareholders.

The Company had applied the principles and complied with the
requirements of the CG Code throughout the Year. Having carried out the
review, none of the Directors was aware of any information that would
reasonably indicate that the Company was during the Year, incompliant

with the CG Code except for the deviations as follows:-

Under provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the board of directors of a listed
company should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Owing to the
receipt of the notice of intention from the substantial shareholder to
dispose of its controlling interests in the Company (the “Disposal”) and
consideration of the relevant works to cope with such change of control of
the Company (although the transaction contemplated under the Disposal
came to an abrupt end on 30th July, 2011), the second regular board
meeting of the Company was deferred to 8th August, 2011 to review
the quarterly results for the three months ended 31st March, 2011 and

approve the 2011 interim results of the Group simultaneously.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (cont'd)

Under provision C.2.2 of the CG Code, the board of directors of a listed
company should consider the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the listed company's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget as part of
internal control of the listed company in the annual corporate governance
review. Under provision C.3.3(g) of the CG Code, the terms of reference
of the audit committee of a listed company should include the duty to
discuss with the management the system of internal control and ensure
that management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the listed company's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget. Although
the Company does not for the time being engage any staff, the Board
has secured the assistance of Chinese Estates, the holding company of
the Company, to provide and to share with its accounting and financial
reporting resources, including human resources, accounting programmes
and other information system facilities to ensure that the Company has
fulfilled the legal and the Listing Rules’ requirements on the preparation
of financial reporting and internal control. The Board believed that such
arrangement with Chinese Estates would substantially reduce the cost
of the Company in accounting, financial reporting and internal controls
functions. The Audit Committee had carried out reviews in December
2011 on the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
the management staff of Chinese Estates who were responsible for
accounting, financial reporting and internal control functions. Various
training programmes had been conducted by well known audit firms for
the managerial staff of Chinese Estates to enhance their knowledge, skill
and work quality on accounting, financial reporting and internal control.
The Board was satisfied with the current accounting labour resources,
qualifications and experience of Chinese Estates. The Board shall continue
to use its best endeavours to ensure high efficiency and effectiveness
and independence of the financial reporting system and internal control
system of the Company under the aforesaid arrangement with Chinese
Estates.

CONCLUSION

Notwithstanding there were deviations from the CG Code provisions,
the Company trusts that it has achieved high standards of corporate
governance during the Year. The Company believes that corporate
governance principles and practices are essential to the business
communities. Ongoing effort will be put to review its corporate
governance practices from time to time so as to accommodate the
changing circumstances. The Company will strive to maintain and
strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate governance.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") present
to the shareholders their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st December, 2011 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries as at 31st December,

2011 are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 43.

An interim dividend for HK1 cent per share was declared for the Year
(2010: HK1 cent per share). The Board resolved to recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per share for the Year (2010:
HK2 cents per share).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year

by its principal activities is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out on page 91.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the investment properties during the Year are set out in

note 16 to the financial statements.

A summary of the investment properties held by the Group as at 31st

December, 2011 is set out in the schedule of properties on page 92.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Year are set out on page 46 and in note 28 to the financial statements

respectively.

The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31st December,
2011 amounted to HK$497,010,000 (2010: HK$497,400,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations had been made by the Group
(2010: Nil).

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
five largest suppliers amounted for 59% and 72% of the Group's total

purchases for the Year.

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for 59% and 77% of the Group's total

turnover for the Year.

Longman Limited (“Longman”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”), was one of the Group's five
largest customers during the Year. As at 31st December, 2011, Chinese
Estates, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, beneficially owned 61.96%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company, is deemed as a
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”))
of the Company.

Apart from aforesaid, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued shares) had interests in

any of the Group's five largest suppliers and customers during the Year.
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Directors’ Report

EEaREuE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Matthew Cheong, Veng-va (Chairman)
Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung

Mr. Mok, Hon-sang

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung and Mr. Wong, Tik-tung will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE(S)'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2011, none of the Directors or chief executive(s)
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO")) as recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules. During the Year, none of
the Directors or chief executive(s) of the Company, nor their spouses or
children under the age of 18 years, were granted or had exercised any
right to subscribe for any securities of the Company or its associated

corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2011, so far as are known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following parties (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to

the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be
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interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Number of Shares

(ordinary share)

Percentage
of Issued

Share Capital

Name RO E Capacity 2T
£718 (BZBER) g% BAE DL
Billion Up Limited 209,931,186 Beneficial owner 61.96%
(Note 1) BEREBA
(HFEE1)
Lucky Years Ltd. 209,931,186 Interests in controlled corporation 61.96%
(Note 1) I | N o e
(HFEET)
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 209,931,186 Interests in controlled corporation 61.96%
(Note 1) RZESIAE 2w
(HF&ET)
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 209,931,186 Interests in controlled corporation 61.96%
DS E (Note 2) A | N o
(HMf5E2)
Global King (PTC) Ltd. 209,931,186 Trustee 61.96%
(Note 3) EFEA
(Fg3E3)
GZ Trust Corporation 209,931,186 Trustee and beneficiary of a trust 61.96%
(Note 3) ErEAR—BEEAZZEA
(FF3E3)
Mr. Li Ka-shing 20,827,142 Founder of discretionary trusts and 6.15%
TERAMEE (Notes 4 & 5) interests of controlled corporations
(P 5E45) MiEEE 28I A R
2kl NGl
T —FFR ERHEBEXERLT 33
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERERAA

THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd) (&)

Name

=L

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee

Corporation Limited

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
Limited

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
RIBX (RE)ERAF

Hutchison Whampoa Limited
ML EHERAF

Hutchison International Limited
MEPEBRAF]

Primetek Holdings Limited

Mr. Lai, Kwok-kwong
BB L

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

Number of Shares

(ordinary share)

RDEAE
EBR)

20,827,142
(Notes 4 & 5)
(P 3E4%5)

20,827,142
(Notes 4 & 5)
(BIEE4 % 5)

20,827,142
(Notes 4 & 5)
GEZE)

20,827,142
(Notes 4 & 5)
QYD)

20,827,142
(Note 4)
(Pt3E4)

20,827,142
(Note 4)
(Pt3E4)

20,827,142
(Note 4)
(Pt3E4)

28,482,000
(Note 6)
(BizE6)

Capacity
&1

Trustee and beneficiary of a trust
EREAR—HEEFEZEZRA

Trustee and beneficiary of a trust
EEAR—HEEFEZZRA

Trustee
A

Interests of controlled corporations
S NI E

Interests of controlled corporations
v UNCIR - Ei

Interests of a controlled corporation
—HERERRR 2 ER

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Annual Report 2011
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Percentage
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Share Capital
28T
RAEBS L

6.15%

6.15%

6.15%

6.15%

6.15%

6.15%

6.15%

8.41%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Notes:

Billion Up Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lucky Years Ltd,
which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates Holdings
Limited ("Chinese Estates”). By virtue of the SFO, Lucky Years Ltd. and
Chinese Estates were deemed to be interested in the 209,931,186
shares of the Company held by Billion Up Limited.

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung, by virtue of his approximately 74.94%
interests in the issued share capital of Chinese Estates, was deemed to
be interested in the same interests stated against Chinese Estates under
the SFO.

GZ Trust Corporation as trustee of a discretionary trust held units in a
unit trust of which Global King (PTC) Ltd. is the trustee. Global King
(PTC) Ltd. is entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting
power at the general meetings of Chinese Estates. Accordingly, Global
King (PTC) Ltd. and GZ Trust Corporation were deemed to be interested
in the same interests stated against Chinese Estates by virtue of the
SFO.

Primetek Holdings Limited (“Primetek”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hutchison International Limited (“HIL"), which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL"). By virtue
of the SFO, each of HWL and HIL was deemed to be interested in the
20,827,142 shares of the Company beneficially owned by Primetek.

Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited, of which each of Mr. Li Ka-shing,
Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard is interested in one-
third of the entire issued share capital, owns the entire issued share
capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1"). TUT1
as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1"), together with certain
companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at their
general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital
of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH"). Subsidiaries of CKH are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the
voting power at the general meetings of HWL.

In addition, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited also owns the entire
issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited
(“TDT1") as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1")
and Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2") as trustee of another
discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in the
UTT.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Notes: (cont'd)

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Ka-shing, being the settlor of DT1 and DT2
may be regarded as a founder of DT1 and DT2 and for the purpose
of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing, TDT1, TDT2, TUT1 and CKH was
deemed to be interested in the 20,827,142 shares of the Company
beneficially owned by Primetek.

6. Of the 28,482,000 shares of the Company in which Mr. Lai, Kwok-
kwong was interested, 6,000,000 shares were held by Powerplanet
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lai, Kwok-kwong. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Lai, Kwok-kwong was deemed to be interested in the
6,000,000 shares of the Company held by Powerplanet Limited. The
remaining 22,482,000 shares of the Company were beneficially owned
by Mr. Lai, Kwok-kwong personally.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st
December, 2011, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company, its ultimate holding
company, or any of its ultimate holding company’s subsidiaries was
a party to enable the Directors to acquire benefit by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS" AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” as mentioned below,
there were no contracts of significance in relation to the Company's
business, to which the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries
was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year, and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest, nor there were any other contracts of significance in relation to
the Company's business between the Company or any of the Company's

subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In November 2008, the Company as lender made a conditional loan
agreement with Longman as borrower, granting a three-year revolving
facility of up to HK$900 million, with Chinese Estates acting as guarantor

for repayment of the loan (the “First Loan Transaction”).

The First Loan Transaction constituted the continuing connected
transactions of the Company. The First Loan Transaction was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 12th December, 2008. It expired on 3rd
November, 2011.

In September 2011, before the expiry of the First Loan Transaction, the
Company as lender made a conditional loan agreement with Longman
as borrower, granting a three-year revolving facility of up to HK$900
million, with Chinese Estates acting as guarantor for repayment of the loan
commenced on 3rd November, 2011 (the “Second Loan Transaction”).
The Second Loan Transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 28th October, 2011.

As at 31st December, 2011, a total sum of HK$900 million had been

drawn by Longman.

Having reviewed the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan
Transaction, the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules on the requirement to carry
annual review on all continuing connected transactions, other than fully
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules (if
any), confirmed that the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan
Transaction, notwithstanding that they were not made in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company, were made on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant loan agreements
governing on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)

The Company's auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors had issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rules 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter had been submitted by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the
Company confirmed that the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan

Transaction:
(1) had received the approval of the Board;

(2) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan

Transaction; and

(3) had not exceeded the cap disclosed in the previous
announcements made on 4th November, 2008 and 22nd
September, 2011.

Save as mentioned above, there were no other discloseable non-
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing connected

transactions under the Listing Rules.

Related party transactions, inclusive of the continuing connected
transactions, entered into by the Group for the Year are disclosed in note

34 to the financial statements.

To the extent of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to
the financial statements constituted continuing connected transactions,
the Company had complied with the relevant requirements under Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31st December, 2011, none of the Directors was interested in any
business, which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the Company's businesses.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the “MPF Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong

Kong (the “Top-up Scheme").

Both the MPF Scheme and the Top-up Scheme were defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes were managed by their

respective trustees accordingly.

The MPF Scheme was available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and
with at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in
Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the Group at 5% based on the
staff's relevant income. The statutory maximum level of relevant income
for contribution purpose is HK$20,000 per month. Staff members were
entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefit was required by law to be preserved until the retirement age of
65. Forfeited contributions of MPF Scheme cannot be used by the Group

to offset the existing level of contributions.

The Top-up Scheme was available to those employees with basic salary
over HK$20,000 and/or years of service over 5. Contributions to the
Top-up Scheme were made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% of
staff's basic salary (depending on the length of service) less the Group's
mandatory contribution under the MPF Scheme. Staff members were
entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retirement age, or were entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The Top-up Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the Top-up Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

Particulars of contribution to these schemes are set out in note 33 to the

financial statements.
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ADVANCES TO AN ENTITY

As at 31st December, 2011, pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules,
the Group had made advances of HK$900 million at HIBOR plus 1.5%
per annum to Longman. The loan had been granted for the capital
expenditure and general working capital of Chinese Estates and its
subsidiaries. The loan is a three-year revolving facility, with Chinese Estates
acting as the guarantor, but is unsecured, and repayable on demand with
maturity date on 2nd November, 2014.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of
this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the Year were audited by Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng ("HLB") whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting. In March 2012, the practice of HLB as
partnership has been reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.
As such, HLB will not offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the annual general meeting. HLB have confirmed that
there are no matters in connection with their retirement as auditors that
need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

A resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as new auditors of the Company for the ensuing year will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Matthew Cheong, Veng-va
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8th March, 2012

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED  Annual Report 2011
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIYRBMBES

HLB B & 3 5 E B oA
Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chi Cheung
Investment Company, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 43 to 90, which
comprise the consolidated and the company statements of financial
position as at 31st December, 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY (cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December, 2011 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8th March, 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWSERRE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE-_T——F+_A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTERT FE&T

Revenue YA 7 19,523 84,572
Cost of sales S AR (236) (17,456)
Gross profit EF 19,287 67,116
Other income R ON 9 1 377
Transfer from equity on disposal of HEFELREER

available-for-sale financial assets FR AR 2 g 2 82 45 (34) -
Administrative expenses TH R (4,323) (4,504)
Fair value changes on investment properties R E&WE 2 A FEEH 16 5,000 -
Other gains and losses, net E s M E R FRE 116 24
Profit before tax B A4 B Vi ) 20,057 63,013
Income tax expense FRi8RiR 12 (3,234) (10,072)
Profit for the year NF R T 10 16,823 52,941
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hh2Mm (Z )tz
Fair value changes on available-for-sale FTELRMEEZ N TEE

financial assets (1,740) 598
Reclassification relating to disposal of HHEFEeREE

available-for-sale financial assets EgibaN 34 -
Other comprehensive (expense) income AREEHEMEME (ZH)

for the year (net of tax) W (FRELE) (1,706) 598
Total comprehensive income for the year ZNEE 2 WU E 5 15,117 53,539
Profit for the year attributable KABEER RN

to owners of the Company REEER 16,823 52,941
Total comprehensive income for the year 72 F#H AL

attributable to owners of the Company ZAFEEZ2HEINFHEE 15,117 53,539
Earnings per share (HK cents) BRER CGBU) 15

Basic and diluted EARR#E 4.97 15.63

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. B/ f & M sE D BI s R @9 — 2 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE MR R

At 31st December, 2011 R-_Z——F+-A=+—H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Furniture and equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Properties held for sale
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loan to a fellow subsidiary
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Tax recoverable
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary
Creditors and accruals
Deposits and receipts in advance
Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Contribution from shareholders
Securities investments reserve
Retained profits
— Proposed final dividend
— Others

Total equity

Non-current liability
Deferred tax liabilities

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
8th March, 2012 and signed on its behalf by:

Matthew Cheong, Veng-va BRE
Director BE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
34,400 29,400
96,263 82,307
130,663 111,707
11,415 15,673
900,000 900,000
- 61

2,917 1,732

= 1,267
12,284 28,493
926,616 947226
144 34

413 651

309 295
1,514 8,010
2,380 8,990
924,236 938,236
1,054,899 1,049,943
3,388 3,388
495,160 495,160
20,719 20,719
4,683 6,389
3,388 6,775
527,055 517,008
1,054,393 1,049,439
506 504
1,054,899 1,049,943

Teresa Poon, Mun-chie
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Statement of Financial Position

Bt #5 51R O ¥R ==

At 31st December, 2011 R-_Z——F+-A=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FETT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Furniture and equipment RARZE 17 - -
Investments in subsidiaries WEARRE 18 181,679 181,679
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI /4 18 117,318 110,686
298,997 292,365
Current assets REBEE
Loan to a fellow subsidiary ETRAMBRARER 21 900,000 900,000
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary SES NGV S 22 - 2
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUERIE - 2 ® MFERTFIA 23 1,315 238
Tax recoverable AT Y B F R - 1,267
Time deposits and bank balances TFHATF R IR TAE 8 24 10,529 17,681
911,844 919,188
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary RERZHERRIRIE 25 98 -
Creditors and accruals FERTERIA K ERTFRIR 26 211 383
Tax liabilities MIEEE 598 846
907 1,229
Net current assets RBEEFEE 910,937 917,959
Total assets less current liabilities EEHBERRBAERS 1,209,934 1,210,324
Equity attributable to owners of KRAREEAZ
the Company iR AR
Share capital [ 27 3,388 3,388
Share premium %1755 B 28 495,160 495,160
Contribution from shareholders fRERIFE 28 20,719 20,719
Retained profits R &M
— Proposed final dividend — ¥R KRB B 3,388 6,775
— Others —HAth 493,622 490,625
Total equity BRAREEHEE 1,016,277 1,016,667
Non-current liability ERBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary REMERRFIE 29 193,657 193,657
1,209,934 1,210,324

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

EEEFEN_Z—_F=A)\BERKRE

8th March, 2012 and signed on its behalf by: B YHTIHEERREESEER:

Matthew Cheong, Veng-va BEE Teresa Poon, Mun-chie B
Director F Director BF

MR T BERERO—FD -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERTEREE K

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE-_T——F+_A=+—HILFE

Contribution  Securities

Share Share from investments Retained Total
capital premium  shareholders reserve profits equity
EH RAER
BR& R EE RREE RERE REEF oY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FHET FHET FHEL FEL FEL
(Note)
(FtzE)
At 1st January, 2010 RZZ-FT5—-H—H 3,388 495,160 20,719 5791 477618 1,002,676
Profit for the year AEZER - - - - 52,941 52,941
Fair value changes on HELREEL
available-for-sale financial assets ATEEEY - - - 598 - 598
Total comprehensive income AEERXANREE
for the year - - - 598 52,941 53,539
Final dividend paid BERRERE - - - - (3,388) (3,388)
Interim dividend paid BRI HERE - - - - (3,388) (3,388)
At 31st December, 2010 RZE—ZF
+-A=1+—"H 3,388 495,160 20,719 6,389 523,783 1,049,439
Profit for the year KERRA - - - - 16,823 16,823
Fair value changes on HELREEL
available-for-sale financial assets LFEEE - - - (1,740) - (1,740)
Redlassification relating to RLERESRHEE
disposal of available-for-sale EXipk ]
financial assets - - - 34 - 34
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AFE2E (%)l
for the year okl - - - (1,706) 16,823 15,117
Final dividend paid ERRERE - - - - (6,775) (6,775)
Interim dividend paid EffFRHERS - - - - (3,388) (3,388)
At 31st December, 2011 RZB-—-%
+=ZA=+-H 3,388 495,160 20,719 4,683 530,443 1,054,393
Note: BsE -

Contribution from shareholders represents the excess of the fair value HEIEHREBN _ZTE=F+—AtBZKNE
of the net assets acquired from Chinese Estates Holdings Limited over  E2X 5 - [A]Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 4§ 2

the consideration paid in relation to the asset transaction completed on EEFEHAFERBEANREZ &%

7th November, 2003.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. B ¥R &M T Ty B HRKR A9 — & 5
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREIMRER

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE-_T——F+_A=+—HILFE

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Fair value changes on investment properties
Transfer from equity on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Net exchange loss (gain)

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease in properties held for sale
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments

(Decrease) increase in creditors and accruals

Increase (decrease) in deposits and
receipts in advance

Cash (used in) generated from operating activities
Net Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Net cash (used in) generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Redemption of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets

Interest received

Loan to a fellow subsidiary

Net cash generated from (used in)
investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Net advances from (repayment to) fellow
subsidiaries

Net cash used in financing activities

REHEK

B 35 A1t A

RANIIEBEZAE:

B A

REMEZ NFEZS)
HEGESREER
P 7 e 2 4

PE M B R (e ) F R

HEEEHRIZ
KERTRE
FEH &R D
YRR - e RIAN
IR

JE A BR IR S et SRR
CRA) 32 hn

e RIRWRIREE N
CR )

(AR KREREXEBZHE
ENEAMNETFE

(AR)REREXEH 2
REFE

REXHK
BRGESREE
HESESREEMSHE

BEFESREE
2 IKAE
f&E T RAKBERBER

RE (AR REXKZ
REFE

BME XK
EREE

EES 1= FACIE-
(&) 8

ARBEXBE 2 REFRE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
20,057 63,013

(16,554) (15,481)
(5,000) -
34 -

174 (362)
(1,289) 47,170
- 16,504
84 115
(238) 2

14 (1,972)
(1,429) 61,819

(8,461) (4,191)
(9,890) 57,628
15,582 -
11,590 -
(38,151) -
14,698 14,910

- (47,000)

3,719 (32,090)

(10,163) (6,776)

17 (54)

(9,992) (6,830)
T -—FFF EHBEERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEABREHRER

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—Z——F+=-A=+—HILtFE

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1st January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31st December

Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(16,163) 18,708
28,493 9,759
(a6) 26
12,284 28,493
12,284 28,493
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ER R MY AL

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company is Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”), a company incorporated
in Bermuda with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange. The address
of the registered office of the Company is disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated and the company financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 35.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")

The accounting policies adopted in the financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2011 are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 except as described below.

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations
("new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group's financial year
beginning on 1st January, 2011. The new HKFRSs adopted by the Group
in the financial statements are set out below:
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010
Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

HE-T——F+-A=+-ALFE

1. —REH

ARAA—BREBIMK L MERORE
BHMAERSMAERAR ([BAZM])EmZA
RAER QR - & ER A 5 A Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited ([#EE]) - —fR B FEEM
R MERGEEZM EMZ AR - ARAZ
M SR IR ARFER [ AT AR — & F

o

A R ARMBRERAET (BT 25
BRAMA/ARREENBAR (REE])ZY
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2. WA RIS T BB
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A1)
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FEZHHREARD 2 BHERRERRE
BRE-T—TF+-A=+—BILEEH
BRI RS — 5

RAFE AEBCEREREEGAMRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BB REME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cont'd)

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of related parties.
The new definitions emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in which persons and key
management personnel affect related party relationships of an entity. The
revised standard also introduces an exemption from the general related
party disclosure requirements for transaction with a government and
entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the same government as the reporting entity. The accounting policy for
related parties has been revised to reflect the changes in the definition
of related parties under the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

In addition, the Group had early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12,
“"Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets” which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2012, in the financial year
ended 31st December, 2010. The early adoption of this amendment has
no significant impact on the Group's results and financial position.

Save as described above, the application of the new HKFRSs had no
material effect on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly,
no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Disclosures — Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters'

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets!

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9

(Amendments) and Transition Disclosure®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B REME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cont'd)

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities®

Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?

Employee Benefits®

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures®

Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*

Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine?

BB SRS %R BEREMEE
FE125% 2 3

BB RS A A NP ERES
F135%

EAEGEAE IR Hib2mkzsEE
(85T A) Z 25

EAGH LS9 REBAS
(20N F&1E5T)

EAGERF275 BB ERE:
(20N F&1E5T)

EBGIERIE28E REEQRR

(2011 F&1ERT)
BB S ERIFE325%

BERARIZES

2 -2REER

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July, 2011
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July, 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after st January, 2014
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2015

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as revised in November
2010) adds requirements for the financial liabilities and for derecognition.
Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent

accounting periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BB REME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cont'd)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2015, with earlier application permitted. The application of HKFRS 9 might
affect the classification, measurement and presentation of the Group's

financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine whether
these new and revised HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how its
results of operations and financial position are prepared and presented.
These new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to

how the results and financial position are prepared and presented.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated and the company financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that
includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

The consolidated and the company financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at their fair values, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B REME

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (cont'd)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share

of the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date). Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised

losses are also eliminated.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.
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BB REME

(a)

(b)

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on

disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income where appropriate.

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B REME

(@

(d)

(e)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the investment properties are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year in

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year in which the property is

derecognised.

Furniture and equipment
Furniture and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of furniture and
equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using the straight-line

method, at 10% per annum.

An item of furniture and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to sale proceeds received after the end of the reporting
period less selling expenses, or by management estimates based on

the prevailing market conditions.
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®

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of such category of financial assets are set out

below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets classified as at fair

value through profit or loss.
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®

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including loan to a fellow subsidiary, amount
due from a fellow subsidiary/subsidiaries, debtors and deposits and
time deposits, bank balances and cash) are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories under
HKAS 39. Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the securities investments reserve until the financial asset
is disposed of or determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in securities
investments reserve is reclassified to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below).

However, interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future

cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(f) Financial instruments (cont'd)
Financial assets (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

(i)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
(i)  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
(iiiy it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

When available-for-sale financial assets are determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest

rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment loss is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group's financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including amount due to a fellow
subsidiary/subsidiary, creditors and accruals and deposits received)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire, or the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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(8)

(h)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Derecognition (cont'd)

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the
execution of a binding sales agreement. Payments received from
the purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as deposits received

on sales of properties and are grouped under current liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties
under operating leases, is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of

the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimate
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset

to that asset's net carrying amount.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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(h)

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Taxation (cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised.
Current and deferred tax are recognised to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in

the accounting for the business combination.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to

income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the entity

intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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MR M

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(i) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as expenses on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(j) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.
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(k)

U

(m)

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying

amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group's parent.
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B REME

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTEs
POLICIES (cont'd)

ml>

THERIE R (48)

(m) Related parties (cont'd) (m) BEAL (E)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following @iy HFFE ARG BNz E a8 B AR
conditions applies: SEBHE
(1) the entity and the Group are members of the same (1) %EREASHEHBER-SEHZ
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and KB (BIE&RAFERQF
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). ERREMBARFEEEE A
&) e
(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 2 BRRS —ERNBEAQT
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of HELERNFA (HE—BERK
a group of which the other entity is a member). BRARIZEEETKERFZ
E NAIS A ERA]) -
(3) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 3) MHEEBHRRA-—F=1®E
SASIK
(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the 4 ERA—F=-hERBZEE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. RA ME—BERBLZE=F
4 P L WNCIE
(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (5) ZEBARALESAEEIEH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity B EERBERENEE -
related to the Group.
(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (6) ZEESO)EATMA TR
identified in (i). #H?*%J
(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence 7 ROMBEFRRATHERS
over the entity or is a member of the key management BERATENNBZERE (3%
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ERZERA)ZEZEREA
g -

\
/

BERMALTHEZNREK S TIEE
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person BRXHBEHRAREEZENALHE
AETHEOREKE -

Close family members of an individual are those family members

in their dealings with the entity. il
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at the end of each reporting period based on its market value and by
adopting investment method, and/or direct comparison method, as
appropriate. The valuation was relied on the discounted cash flow analysis
and the capitalisation of income approach. The investment method is
based upon estimates of future results and a set of assumptions specific
to each property to reflect its tenancy and cashflow profile. The fair value
of each investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current term leases, term vyield rate, assumptions about rental
income from future reversion leases in light of current market conditions,
the assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by the
valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors, including
term yield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such yield rates were adopted
after considering the investment sentiments and market expectations of
properties of similar nature. Direct comparison method assumes each
of these properties is capable of being sold in its existing state with the
benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant markets. Should there be
changes in assumptions due to change of market conditions, the fair value

of the investment properties will change in future.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

4. BAREEHE M AEET T AR
REZFBHRIR (B)

EREFREZBREALR (B)
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Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (cont'd)

Income tax expense

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether

additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters

is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences

will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments:

ZFISH R ER AR BN E -

5. @@ T HE

(a) EWMITAEH:

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The Group rEH
Financial assets SRMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets FETMEE 107,678 97,980
Loans and receivables (including time deposits, ER & EWFIE (B 1EE
bank balances and cash) TR CBITEHREESD) 915,052 930,141
Financial liabilities Ea =K
Amortised cost # SH P AR 866 968
The Company NN
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and receivables (including time deposits BER M ERGRIE (B IEE S
and bank balances) TFRNIRITER) 1,029,012 1,028,462
Financial liabilities EA- =K
Amortised cost B EEp A 193,966 194,040
T —FFR ERHEBEXERLT
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(b)

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's and the Company's major financial instruments include
available-for-sale financial assets, loan to a fellow subsidiary, amount
due from a fellow subsidiary/subsidiaries, debtors, deposits paid,
time deposits, bank balances and cash, amount due to a fellow
subsidiary/subsidiary, creditors, accruals and deposits received. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risk associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's and the Company's risk
exposure relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.

Market risk

(1) Foreign currency risk
The majority of the Group's monetary assets and monetary
liabilities by value and the rental income are denominated
in HK$, except the available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD"). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

The Group AEE
Assets BE
usD ETT

Sensitivity analysis
As HK$ are pegged to USD, it is assumed that there would
be no material currency risk exposure between these two

currencies and therefore is excluded from the analysis.
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(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Market risk (cont'd)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group and the Company do not have any bank

borrowings.

The Group and the Company have interest-bearing assets
including available-for-sale financial assets, loan to a fellow
subsidiary, time deposits and bank balances and is therefore
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. Details of which
have been disclosed in respective notes. The Group and the
Company currently do not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's and the Company's cash flow interest rate risk
are mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rates ("HIBOR") and The London Interbank
Offered Rates (“LIBOR").

Sensitivity analysis
If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower,
the Group's and the Company's:

. profit before tax for the year ended 31st December,
2011 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$4,609,000 and HK$4,552,000 respectively
(2010: HK$4,747,000 and HK$4,587,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's and the Company's
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate financial

assets; and

no impact to the other component of equity for the
years ended 31st December, 2011 and 2010.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)

Market risk (cont'd)

(iii)  Price risk
The Group's investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and expose the Group to price risk.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's:

profit before tax for the years ended 31st December,

2011 and 2010 would not increase/decrease; and

other component of equity for the year ended
31st December, 2011 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$5,384,000 (2010: HK$4,899,000).

Credit risk

The Group's and the Company's maximum exposures to credit
risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st December, 2011 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets are the carrying amounts of those assets.
With respect to credit risk arising from loan to a fellow subsidiary,
the Group's and the Company's exposure to risk of default of the
counterparty is limited as the counterparty has good history of
repayment. The Group's and the Company's time deposits are

deposited with bank of high credit quality in Hong Kong.
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(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Credit risk (cont'd)

The Group and the Company made transactions with counterparties
with acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group treasury
policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable credit ratings from
reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny of financials for non-
rated counterparties are two important criteria in the selection of
counterparties. The credit quality of counterparties will be closely
monitored over the life of the transaction. The Group and the
Company review their financial counterparties periodically in order
to reduce credit risk concentrations relative to the underlying size

and credit strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the Group and
the Company also monitor potential exposures to each financial

institution counterparties.

Other than concentration of credit risk on the loan to a fellow
subsidiary, the Group and the Company do not have any other

significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group and the Company manage liquidity risk by regularly
monitoring current and expected liquidity requirements and
ensuring sufficient liquid cash and intended credit lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet the Group’s and the
Company's liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The
liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by management.

Management will raise bank borrowings whenever necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company did

not have significant exposure to liquidity risk.

The contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities which are
required to be repaid within one year or on demand amounted to
HK$866,000 and HK$309,000 respectively (2010: HK$968,000
and HK$383,000).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 5. £EITA ()
(c) Fair value estimation () ADFEME

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with BEEEGRRRGGLERNERRATSE

standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets BremEEREMABBZAFTETID A

are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask LEMBEARBLEHNE-

prices respectively.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider that the RARABIEZ([EF])RA MWBERERANK

carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded KBHAAARZ REERSRIBER

at amortised costs in the financial statements approximate to their EEEATEREE-

fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that TRENRERER NP EFEZ 2R

are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped TEZHH UWREBEBAFEZAIBEREE

into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is DRE-ZE=H:

observable:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from FE—H: RTEFELERZFZEEXA
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for BERERMBEE 2 RE (KL
identical assets or liabilities; FHE)

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs FZH: RFEFEAEERE (RER) N
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that M (2ZER)NAIBERZE
are observable for asset or liability, either directly (i.e. EXBEMGZEE (RE—R
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and ZHRERIN) K

Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from FE=: RFEA=ZHEAZE BFKE
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset WHISEEMS 2 EENEEE
or liability that are not based on observable market B (GERBREE) 2 M ERM
data (unobservable inputs). EAo

The following table shows the Group's analysis of financial TREATRATFEDRGIFESRATE

instruments recorded at fair value by the fair value hierarchy: REAEEERMIADNT:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-8 B E mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET T FAET

The Group rEE

At 31st December, 2011 R-ZB-—%+-A=1+—-8H

Available-for-sale financial assets HEERERE 107,678 - - 107,678

At 31st December, 2010 RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H

Available-for-sale financial assets FESREE 97,980 - - 97,980

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in ANEEIBREINE—R FE_RRE=HR

the fair value hierarchy. AR
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the Company
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at

a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group’s capital
structure to maximise the returns to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt afforded by a sound capital position, and make adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions. The

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2010.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. At 31st December, 2011 and
2010, the Group's gearing ratio was undefined because the Group did not

have any borrowings at the end of each reporting period.

6. EARKRER

AR BERBRERBKFE T ERMREHEE
EE REREAEKANEHEZTAEEE
A TEERARBASBECERBRELE 28
N NERAEBER/ARRRRFERMD
WY REMEREREREN S

EEEBtYEREN MNEEREE 2 ERERE
BBIATEE MR T BICER KRB R
HBEBPRYHERR T%f’ﬁu”j;ﬂ%‘ RIRFE

RAZER - AEBERERAEE T —TFRE
7r ,,,,,,,
AEBEREARBLXEREENGERE WE

bREt
HITEEMEEEH B -R_FT——FLK_-F
—ZEE+ A=+ —H BARFAEERESRES
R B|EABE BABEBREERNBE LK

7. REVENUE 7. WA

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts WABE W R EY 2 &5t

received and receivable, analysed as follows: AT

Property rental income MEMEBBA 2,977 2,672
Sales of properties held for sale FIEREMEIHE - 66,430
Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets &4 R & ZE 2 Fl 2 WA 5,013 4,997

Interest income on loan to a fellow subsidiary BTYTREEMBERATERZ
AMEUA 11,533 10,473
19,523 84,572

TR -—FFR  EREXARQAA
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to make

strategic decisions.

The Group has engaged three reportable segments — (i) property
development; (i) property leasing; and (iii) securities investments and
finance. The segmentations are based on the information about the

operations of the Group that management uses to make decisions.
Principal activities are as follows:
Property development - Property development and sales of
properties

Property leasing - Property rental
Securities investments and - Securities investments and
finance financing activities

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations before tax expense but not including the major non-cash items.
The major non-cash item is fair value changes on investment properties.

There is no intersegment revenue accountable for in both years.

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported segment

profit or loss remain unchanged from 2010.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that operate
different activities. They are managed separately because each business

has different markets and requires different marketing strategies.

Included in revenue arising from securities investments and finance
of HK$16,546,000 (2010: securities investments and finance of
HK$15,470,000 and property development of HK$66,430,000) is
revenue of approximately HK$11,533,000 (2010: HK$10,473,000 and
HK$66,430,000 respectively) which arose from the Group's one (2010:
five) major customer and each customer accounted for more than 10%

of the Group's total revenue.

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED  Annual Report 2011

e sEm g
8. EiEDHE

$‘iE?FETFI%**@3&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ”@ﬁﬁﬁ%d&m%
ERCREETZENR-

AEBHEZEAITEZRIBE-()VDEER: (VD
H¥HEE: R(NBHEELBE - AEEHNER
EBRERR ZEEERETHE

TEERFSHMT :

MEER - DEEREVEHEE
MERE - BEME
EHRERBE — BHFRERBEXEH

AEBUMBHERIA (ETRBEETBHFAS
BHR)ZELENIERRELEFERR T8
FREBERREMEZAFEEE - NMEF
B E A ASRZ D BRRE A

AEBARETO2 RS ERARBAZHE
FRE-T-BEREHTE -

AREAZRHDPARBEBET ULETH
¥B-mEXERNER HOEREEBERT
RI™ % B8 KA RIS

NBEHRE R EE S+ 2 W A16,546,000% 7T
(ZZ2—ZF EFHFRERFE5470,000% 7T
& %%’f [&66,430,000/% 7T ) 1 #J11,533,000
BIL(ZT—ZFF: 5 510,473,000/ 7T &
66,430,000?%7E)ZL|5U\5K BEXAEE—%R(=ZF
—ZTF RR)EERF MBEFEFPEAEER
ALEFEFBB10% o



Notes to the Financial Statements

BB RRME

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd)

Operating segment information is presented below:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2011

Revenue
Revenue from external customers

Results
Segment results for reportable segments

Unallocated items
Interest income
Other gains and losses, net
Unallocated corporate expenses, net
Income tax expense

Core profit (excluding major
non-cash item)
Major non-cash item

— fair value changes on investment properties

Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

KA
RENBEP WA

E3
NERNBEZNRES

ANERE
MBBA
Httfam kBB FR
ADBZRRFAXFE
FrgHRAX

BAEH (FRELE
$R2R)

TEHRLER
~RANEZ ATER

FARREEAEE
KEERT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2011

Assets
Segment assets for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

BE
NERNBZNREE

APBZRFRE

GREERE

A&
NERN BN BAE

ApEZRAAE

ReRERE

®©

=

a s

B

SR

&)

BENHEHNZINNNT:

REEZERERE
BE_FT——F1-_A=1—HIFE

Securities
Property Property investments
development leasing and finance  Consolidated
BHRE
MERE MEHRE kEE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
- 2,977 16,546 19,523
- 2,1M 16,338 19,109
8
86
(4,146)
(3.234)
11,823
5,000
16,823
FRETBMRRBER
RZFE——F+=-HA=+—H
Securities
Property Property investments
development leasing and finance  Consolidated
MERR MERE kBE &R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER TR TR
- 34,413 1,010,432 1,044,845
12,434
1,057,279
- 309 - 309
2,571
2,886
—E-——FFH EREBEXBRLA
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st December, 2010

Revenue
Revenue from external customers

Results
Segment results for reportable segments

Unallocated items
Interest income
Other gains and losses, net
Unallocated corporate expenses, net
Income tax expense

Core profit (excluding major
non-cash item)
Major non-cash item
— fair value changes on investment properties

Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

L'ON
RENBEP ZB]A

£
NERN BN BEE

ADEER
MBMA
Hip sk EREFR
APEZRAFOFR
8RR

BAOER (FAFELE
#8888

TEHRLER
—BENEZ ATERD

ERTER AR
REEREN

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2010

Assets
Segment assets for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities
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FEETHRERR
BE-T—FTF+ A=+ HIFE
Securities
Property Property investments
development leasing and finance Consolidated
EHFRE
NERRE NERE NEE wa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET TR
66,430 2672 15,470 84,572
49,302 2,344 15,832 67478
11
24
(4,500)
(10,072)
52,941
52,941
FEPBMRRBR

K-E—FF+=A=+—A

Securities

Property Property investments
development leasing and finance
EHRE

NEERE NEES LRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THET

- 29,502 999,465

86 356 -
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd)

Geographical information

For the years ended 31st December, 2011 and 2010, all the Group's

operations are located in Hong Kong. The Group's revenue is all derived

from Hong Kong for both years.

9. OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are:

Interest income

Exchange gain, net

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after (charging)

crediting:

Total staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments
Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Auditors’ remuneration

Exchange loss, net

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated rental income
during the year
Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that did not generate rental income

during the year

U= ¥
8- E@%iﬁ\ (/\‘/

B R
HE-FT-—FR-F-FTF+-A=+—0
ILERE AR EEEBEEAEE  EMAS

Tl

)

/

EREEZBAREKEERE

9. HA
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Hib W ABIE -
FEIA 8 11
PE H e F 58 - 362
10. N 8 % 7
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FBT
REZRFE (FBR)FEA:
BEKAMHERE:
EE (560) (560)
e REAMBER (2,568) (2,912)
RIRTEFETEIHE R (139) (143)
(3,267) (3,615)
13 Gl (220) (220)
FE X 518 F 58 (174) -
WEMEZ S WRALE 2,977 2,672
WA FEELEES
WA Z IR E WS
HELERY (234) (239)
AEEWEELERS
WA Z B
HELERX (2) (89)
2,741 2,344
T —FFR ERHEBEXERLT
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11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 11.
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a)

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the Directors for the
years ended 31st December, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

N

AN
v

EFNEE 2B

BEEMS
Bz Z——F K _ZT—ZF+_H
Zt+—HLIEE BENKENFTFEESZ

weREMMEenT :
2011 2010
Salaries Salaries
and other and other
Fee emoluments Total Fee  emoluments Total
HeR ek
ik Hit ¢ @ we Hftie 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TET FET FET
Mr. Matthew Cheong, Veng-va ERERE 10 - 10 10 - 10
Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie EaE A 10 - 10 10 - 10
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung BEELE 180 - 180 180 - 180
Mr. Mok, Hon-sang REERE 180 - 180 180 - 180
Mr. Wong, Tik-tung ERREE 180 - 180 180 - 180
560 - 560 560 - 560
No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31st BEEHEREE T ——F R -_T—TF
December, 2011 and 2010. += A=+ — 8 - FE R pE Y EUE A B
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEMSE
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, AEBRERESHFMALH ME (T —
two (2010: Nil) were Directors whose emoluments were included TEM)RES REZMEHN(a)E -
in (a). The emoluments of the remaining three (2010: five) HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HIFEH
individuals for the year ended 31st December, 2011 were as B=H (ZE—ZFF 1A) @A LB
follows: Cay/ N
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e hEMmEF 976 2,529
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTEHFET SR 45 123
1,021 2,652

The emoluments of individual employee were all less than
HK$1,000,000.

During the years ended 31st December, 2011 and 2010, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, or Directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge (credit) comprises:

Current tax:

Hong Kong

Overprovision in prior years:

Hong Kong

Deferred tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at

estimated assessable profits for the year.

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of tax depreciation

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Overprovision in prior years

Tax charge for the year

16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the Z&E&F1

12. TSR
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
T (KR BHE:
= E
Fs 3,233 10,070
BEFEBERE:
BE (1) -
EIETIE 2 2
3,234 10,072

R1650% (ZZT—

SFVIRIEARFE 2 (A5 ER TR R i
T4 165% )5 E -

REEZERZ PRS2 EIRESHRE 2B
Ala A SRR T -
2011 2010
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FBT FHET
B 50 AR A 20,057 63,013
BEBNEHRE16.5%
(ZZ—ZF:165%)
StEZRIE 3,309 16.5 10,397 165
BB S BARD
WAZ BB 72 (110) (0.6) (254) (0.4)
BB F AT
Xz Bz 37 0.2 - -
EBRLIAERZ
B EE - - (73) 0.1
METELRETE (1) - - -
AERZBBEERZ
BsTE - - 2 -
BEFERERE (1) - - -
AEEREZ M 3,234 16.1 10,072 16.0

—F R

EREXARLE
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13. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, net profit of HK$9,773,000
(2010: HK$55,365,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements

of the Company.

14. DIVIDENDS

(a) Final dividend for 2010 paid on
17th June, 2011 of HK2 cents
(2009: HK1 cent) per share

(b) Interim dividend for 2011 paid on
23rd September, 2011 of HK1 cent
(2010: HK1 cent) per share

Total dividends paid

13. KA BIHEA AEAL & A

BHEe-_Z2——F+_A=+—BLLtFE 47
9,773,000/ 7T (=& —Z 4 : 55,365,000/%8 7T )
BERARR YRR AELRE -

@ W=T——FXA+LE
BIENZ -2 F%F
KEW 8 F BB

(ZZZTNAF: B

by R=ZT——FNhHA=+=H
RNz —E——%F
A HARR S AR B AL

(ZZ—ZF: 178

EIRAT A B AR R

Final dividend of HK1 cent (2010: HK2 cents) per ordinary share has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the

shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$16,823,000 (2010:
HK$52,941,000) and on the weighted average number of 338,765,987
(2010: 338,765,987) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st December, 2011 and

2010 was the same as the basic earnings per share as there were no

diluting events during both years.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group rEH

Fair value nNFE

At st January, 2010 RIE—TF—
and 31st December, 2010 M _ZE-FF

Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated RNiEE 2 ER
statement of comprehensive income N FEEHE N

At 31st December, 2011

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

Property valuations as at 31st December, 2011 and 2010 were carried
out by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.l. Appraisals”), independent qualified
professional valuers, in respect of the Group's investment properties. B.I.
Appraisals holds a recognised professional qualification and has recent
relevant experience. Property valuation was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties at similar

locations.

The valuation report for the investment properties as at 31st December,
2011 is signed by a director of B.l. Appraisals, who is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation is performed in
accordance with The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards
on Properties (1st Edition 2005) published by The Hong Kong Institute of

Surveyors.

The Group's investment properties are under medium-term leases in
Hong Kong as at 31st December, 2011 and 2010.

R=F-——%+=A=t—H

HK$'000
T T
—H
—A=+—H 29,400
KPR
5,000
34,400

REEXANFAEUARRESSEERREL
AEBEREMEREDRBATEERGE I
DBEEARINEREDE -

BUYABEREXMHEMRBERFEBER AR
(MREEEFEDERETEER T ——FR
—EBET A=+ -HZREMEETY
XhE-ROBERFIEHARAEXER LA
WO BEER - MEME2RELULER
BEYMERIRRBZMIGREEE -

RZEB——F+_A=1T—"R REWEZMHE
BERRAERFG2ES (FEANEMEES
B)RF-RAENETEBNEMBEMBEN
ZYEMEERN (ZETRFE—IR) EITEMR -

R-FB——FR-_FB-ZFTF+_A=1t—H8 &
SEZREMEREBEPHENTE -
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17. FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

The Group and the Company
Cost

At 1st January, 2010

Written off

At 31st December, 2010
and 31st December, 2011

Depreciation
At 1st January, 2010
Written off

At 31st December, 2010
and 31st December, 2011

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2010
and 31st December, 2011

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS

DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

Unlisted shares, at cost

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Less: impairment loss recognised in respect of

the amounts due from subsidiaries

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED

17. REAKEHE
HK$'000
FHETT
AEBRAELDQT
R
RZE—ZFTF—H—H 1,117
g8 (1,117)
RZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H
¢y =ZF——%F+=-A=+—8 -
e
RZZE—ZFF—H—H 1,117
i 54 (1,117)
WZE—ZTF+=ZA=+—8
y=—ZE——F+=-—RA=+—H -
REE
R=-ZE—-ZF+=-A=+—H
k—2——%+=-R=+—H -
18. B AR E,/HB A A
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
VNN
FEEMRAD - A 181,679 181,679
e NEIRSE /S 118,717 112,085
W BB A B R FRAER
BEEE (1,399) (1,399)
117,318 110,686

Annual Report 2011
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries are reduced
to their recoverable amounts which are determined by reference to
the estimation of future cash flows expected to be generated from the
respective subsidiaries. The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms, except for an amount of
HK$118,195,000 (2010: HK$110,481,000) is interest-bearing.

Particulars of the Group's subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2011 are set
out in Note 35.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

H

18. fiBRAIKRE, WERF
T/ﬂ(g)

MBARKERmMEREAEATKEGE  BH
e eRES2ERHRE EME QT ZEEHR
RIRSMEETE B A%118,195,000% 7T (=
—ﬁi 110,481,000/ 70 ) 2 R K EET B0 - i
NARRAER 2 8 R & EF R -

all

j—

REEWNBRAANR_T——F+=ZA=+—H
Z R EE N KR35 o

19. FETREE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
The Group AEE

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise: HTESRMEERRE:
Unlisted floating rate notes (Note 1) FEETMEEER (M51) 11,415 23,072
Unlisted fixed rate notes (Note 2) FLEmEERE (MF2) 96,263 74,908
107,678 97,980

Analysis for reporting purposes as: EmRERBRZ DT
Non-current assets EMEBEE 96,263 82,307
Current assets REEE 11,415 15,673
107,678 97,980

TR -—FFR  EREXARQAA
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 10. FESTMEE (B)
(cont'd)
Notes: (=

(1) The floating rate notes are unlisted and carry interest at LIBOR plus (1) FEZHRAFLTES WREMNKGIR

0.23% (2010: LIBOR plus 0.23% to 0.25%) per annum, payable on TRIZEFRSM023E (T —TF AR
quarterly basis, will mature in June 2012 (2010: from January 2012 to F I B M0.23E 025 ) 5t B - BIRE
June 2012) and was classified as current asset. FOHEHBAR-TE——FRA(ZE—TF:

—EZF-AEZZT—Z=F5-A) BHHA

(2) The fixed rate notes are unlisted and carry interest from 4.75% to  (2) TEEZEAFELMES WIRFHNERL75EE

6.50% (2010: 4.75% to 7.00%) per annum, payable on half-year 6.50E (=T —TF 1 475E X700 )58
basis, and will mature from February 2013 to August 2019 (2010: from BEYENF AR -_ZT—=F_A%
February 2011 to March 2016). —E-NENA(ZE-TF 2 ——FC

REZZ—XRF=A)-

(3)  Fair values of the floating and fixed rate notes were determined based (3) FERTEEZREZ AFETREITEERIA
on the quoted market bid prices available on the industry group. e mIZERBEE -
20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20. FHELEMXE
HK$'000
FET
The Group rEE
At st January, 2010 RZZ2—FF—-H—H 16,504
Disposals k= (16,504)
At 31st December, 2010 R-ZB-ZFF+=-H=+—H
and 31st December, 2011 kR—Z——F+=-H=+—H -
21. LOAN TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY 21. &5 TRAMBRRIER
The Group and the Company AEBERARQT

On 4th November, 2008, the Company, as lender, entered into a loan MK Z-ZZTZENF+—ANHE A28 (EA
agreement with Longman Limited (“Longman”), a subsidiary of Chinese & 77 ) 23 = ~ K & 2 flLongman Limited
Estates, as borrower, and Chinese Estates, as guarantor, to grant a three-  ([Longman ] " {EAE ) RES ({EAERA)
year revolving facility of up to HK$900 million to Longman at an interest &1 3 — 3 &5 #i% - LAFAlLongmaniZ it —E & %
rate of HIBOR plus 1% per annum (“First Revolving Loan"). 900,000,000 L2 =FHBRERME  HE

R FRERBEFRTAEFEIME ([E—%

BRER]) -

On 22nd September, 2011, the Company, as lender, entered into a new  R-T——FNAZ-+=H £&RQ7 (EAEH)
loan agreement to renew the First Revolving Loan in the same principal B[R —FTH AL —H M ERGBZE - JAERERS
amount with the same parties for three-year commenced from 3rd FEFEF—EREEF B-_FT——F+—A

November, 2011 at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum = BRETAH=F WERZFFXRAEFBET
(“Second Revolving Loan"). BEEFEIMSE(E_FB/RER]) -

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED  Annual Report 2011
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21. LOAN TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY (cont'd)

For further details of the Second Revolving Loan, please refer to the

Company's circular dated 12th October, 2011.

Name of fellow subsidiary EESEAGIET
Longman Longman

— First Revolving Loan —B-ERERER
— Second Revolving Loan —B_ERRER

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM A FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

The Group
Name of fellow subsidiary SES by NIRRT
G-Prop (Holdings) Limited TECEERAA

The Company

Name of fellow subsidiary EESEAGIET

G-Prop (Holdings) Limited TEREBRAQA]

The amount due from a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The Group and the Company do not hold collateral

over the balance.

21. ETFRRMBAGTERK (B)

BERE _ZRREFZEFMAER F2HELQ
AR ——FTATZHZREBX-

Highest balance
during the year

FARARSEH 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
900,000 - 900,000
900,000 900,000 -

22. AR B A BIRK

AEE
Highest balance
during the year

F N & 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FET
61 - 61

¥ NN

Highest balance
during the year

FARARSEH 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

2 - 2

RAAMBRRRRARBELRR R RRERE
B o NEE R AR BN BB A T R
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23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group and the Company
There were no trade receivables included in debtors, deposits and

prepayments as at 31st December, 2011 and 2010.

24. TIME DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

The Group and the Company
The time deposits of the Group and the Company carry interests at
prevailing market deposit rates and mature within one month. The Group

and the Company do not hold collateral over the balance.

25. AMOUNT DUE TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

The Group and the Company
The amount due to a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

26. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

The Group and the Company
There were no trade payables included in creditors and accruals as at 31st
December, 2011 and 2010

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED  Annual Report 2011

23. JEWHRIE - 12 & R FA 5IR

AEERAEARQT
RZIE——FRZZF-—ZTF+_A=1+—H &
IARIE e RIENREAT EBFEEWKE 5K
o

24, EHifFRC RTTEHRMRE
AEBRAAT
AR ERADT 2R 5 5 A

EEE XN —EARBE  REB R KRR R
B ESRTAER-

25. REFR ZWE AT I8

KEBREQT
REARAME AR FIA/EER 28 RIZER
BE -

26. B HRIA K B &t 5K 0A

AEERFAT
R-B——FR-2—FFE+-A=+—A &

HEEIE&J'&““rMIEWIE BREENESHIE.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

The Group and the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Authorised:
At 1st January, 2010,

31st December, 2010

and 31st December, 2011

Issued and fully paid:

At 1st January, 2010,
31st December, 2010
and 31st December, 2011

28. RESERVES

The Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

The Company

KEBERARQE

FREECOIEITLZ T @KL

EE A
KoZ—2F—F—A.

—T-Z=E+-F=+—H

rZF——F+=_A=+—H

BT R
R-_Z—ZF—-H—H"

—T-TEt-A=t-A

ry—ZF——F+=-RA=+—H

27. B
Number of Share
shares capital
BHEE &N
HK$'000
FAT
50,000,000,000 500,000
338,765,987 3,388
28. &
E

RAERTREHEHRED -

ENNS

Contribution

FEERTFERBEFE2EHEREEZHR

Share from Retained
premium shareholders profits Total
% 45 % E REXE REBEF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
At st January, 2010 W-ZT—-TFE—A—H 495,160 20,719 448,811 964,690
Profit for the year NEE A - - 55,365 55,365
Final dividend paid BEARERR S - - (3,388) (3,388)
Interim dividend paid [RENEE SN - - (3,388) (3,388)
At 31st December, 2010 R-T—ZTF+-F=+—H 495,160 20,719 497400 1,013,279
Profit for the year REE A - - 9,773 9,773
Final dividend paid B R AR S - - (6,775) (6,775)
Interim dividend paid BT R S - - (3,388) (3,388)
At 31st December, 2011 R=ZB-——%+=-A=+—8H 495,160 20,719 497,010 1,012,889

The Company's reserves available for distribution to owners as at 31st
December, 2011 amounted to approximately HK$497,010,000 (2010:

HK$497,400,000).

RIEBE——F+_A=+—8  AQaa#Hnk
T A A2 EEL 549701000087 (ZE—=
£ 1 497,400,000/ 7T ) ©

TR -—FFR  EREXARQAA
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29. AMOUNT DUE TO A SUBSIDIARY

The Company
The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no

fixed repayment term.

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The Group
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the current and

prior reporting periods:

At 1st January, 2010 R-ZE—ZEF—H—H
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ A4R & 2 T M 25 R & f0BR

comprehensive income

At 31st December, 2010 NZZE—ZEF+ZA=+—H
Charged to the consolidated statement of P45 4 2 M 25 MR N

comprehensive income

At 31st December, 2011 R-B——F+=ZHA=+—H

For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets have been

offset.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any

unrecognised deferred tax assets (2010: Nil).

1. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st December, 2011 and 2010, the Group and the Company did not

have any material capital commitments and contingent liabilities.

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED  Annual Report 2011

29. REM B R RIFIA

YN
REMWBARFAREER 2ENTEETEE
HKE

30. BT AR E

rEE

AT A S B R AR E B KB T WS R E
TRETEREHIBEE (EREE) LAY
&) :

Investment Accelerated tax
properties depreciation Total
REME B IHTE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET
511 9) 502
- 2 2
511 @ 504
- 2 2
511 (5) 506

RENFEPBRRARE ETEERBERER
BECKHIE-

R¥RE SR NREE I EEAIARER ZRERIE
( =

BE(ZT—FTF:8)-

M

1 ERAERKARE

—EF—ER-T-FET-AS+-A- K
BRAD AR EAE AR R AR

o

oo R
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32. OPERATING LEASES

At 31st December, 2011 and 2010, the Group and the Company did not

have any material operating lease commitments.

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme") and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme").
Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are based on a percentage of
employees’ salaries ranging from 5% to 10%, depending upon the
length of service of the employees. From 1st December, 2000, newly
joined employees are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to

the scheme at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of approximately HK$139,000 (2010: HK$143,000) represented

contributions payable to these schemes by the Group for the year.

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions:
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and
the Company had the following material transactions with related parties

during the year:

The Group and the Company KREBRAAT
Interest income on loan to a fellow subsidiary BTREME A
B A

Interest income was charged on outstanding balance during the vyear,

details are set out in Note 21.

Balances:
Details of the balances with related parties at the end of the reporting

period are set out in Notes 21, 22 and 25.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Note 11(a).
The remuneration of the senior executives is determined by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of individuals

and market trends.

32. =L

RZF-——FERZF-FF+A=+—H &
SERARA LB FTEREERLOAE-

33. R IRAE A ETE

AREESHBEFE T EH/FRKE 8 2 BER IR
B ([BERAGTE) ket nEestal (98
EetEl]) - ARBRBERAEELIERS
B2 5%ZE10%HK (AT EERFFE) A=
ZEEFT _A-—BRERNMAREBEZHEES
ASMmeEeiE - EXREEOFTRBES
R ANA T 2 L R AR

REEE2EWRERER NG 2 2% B %) A139,000
BT (2T —ZF 143,000 7T) @ I ARE B
AEERZETEIEMS 2 HR -

4. BERBEEATRS
R5:

BUMBHRREMBOEWEEIN AEERAR
RIRNAFREHEMEATETATERRS:

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TABT

g
11,533 10,473

B ARIBF A H R &SR E - FHIE RN K
21 °

Fe
RIREHR - HEEA T2 X B EHNM
552122825 -

TEEBEAEME:
TEERAESMERNMEN(@ANRKE - SRTT
BABZMEmHFMEZRE 2 L@ ALRR
N5 BB ILEE -
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At 31st December, 2011, the Company has direct and indirect interests in

the following subsidiaries which are all private limited companies.

35. (B AR

RIE——F+-_A=1t—H FARA&HEENIHE
EHEATIMBAR s MxSHE QRS
RIUANBRAF

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation or Class of Fully paid paid-up capital held Principal
Name of subsidiaries operation share  share capital by the Company activities
ARAFEAR
WELR AR MR IR EEE R4 &5 BERA RAEEZED L TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# Bk
Chi Cheung Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Dormant
Services Limited Bk ERR 2B LEe%
EREERBERAF
Chi Cheung (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Securities
B LRR 28T investment
EHRE
Jumbo Legend Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$2 100% - Investment holding
AEABRES LR 2ETT REZK
View Success Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property
RFREBRRAA B ERR 28T investment and
trading
NERERES

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the end of

the reporting period or at any time during the reporting period.

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group and the Company do not have material events after the end of

the reporting period.

37. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the

current year's presentation.

38. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 8th March, 2012.
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37 BT
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38. Xk
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EEMBHRE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five ~HANEBBERFZEE EEREBEHEMNT:

years is as follows:

For the year ended 31st December,
BE+-A=+-BLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TR FHET FHT
Results E4 |
Revenue N 19,523 84,572 23,558 143,087 69,974
Profit before tax B B A 7 20,057 63,013 19,307 132,775 115,395
Income tax expense MERAX (3,234) (10,072) (1,446) (16,089) (7,805)
Profit for the year KEZRF 16,823 52,941 17861 116,686 107590
Attributable to: JEfh:
Owners of the Company A/NCIE 2PN 16,823 52,941 17,861 116,686 107651
Non-controlling interests FERER - - - - (61)
16,823 52,941 17,861 116,686 107,590
Basic and diluted eamings BREAKXLE LN
per share (HK cents) (Note) (B (PEE) 4.97 15.63 527 34.44 3178
Final and interim dividends FRABERFHRE
per share (HK cents) (740) 2 3 2 1 -

Note: The calculation of the basic and diluted eamings per share is based on  Hist: BREARBERFRIEEFEAQAE
the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the years and on BANEGRNREEFEDETRG 2 NE
the weighted average number of shares in issue during the relevant B E -
years.

At 31st December,

Rt=-A=+-AH
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THEL FHET FHEL

Assets and liabilities BEREHE

Total assets BELR 1,057,279 1,058,933 1,007,066 997,524 884,978

Total liabilities BEBE (2,886) (9,494) (4,390) (12,785) (16,939)

Total equity RARGERE 1,054,393 1,049,439 1,002,676 984,739 868,039

Attributable to: FEAE -

Owners of the Company ARAEEA 1,054,393 1,049,439 1,002,676 984,739 869,123
Non-controlling interests FERES - - - - (1,084)
1,054,393 1,049,439 1,002,676 984,739 868,039

Net asset value per share attributable to A A BB AJE(S
owners of the Company (HK$) BREEFE(EL) 3.11 3.10 296 291 257

Number of shares issued BEITRHEA 338,765,987 338,765,987 338,765,987 338,765,987 338,765,987

TR -—FFR  EREXARQAA 91



92

Schedule of Properties

Y S

The following table sets forth the Group's properties as at 31st December, 2011:

TRV AEER -_F——F+_A=+—"B2ZWE:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REME

Location
I B

Gemstar Tower

The roof together with
50 car parking spaces
on 1st to 3rd Floors
No. 23 Man Lok Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
Hong Kong

BAEDLH

BB NEEAL
RE4235%
RaREREZ
501 5 12

Lot Number

b B 4R 5%

Certain parts or shares of
and in Hung Hom Inland
Lot No. 545

ALR) A3 R 54557 2
ET St

CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED  Annual Report 2011

Usage

k=S

Car parking
JAEAL

Category of
the lease term

HEE R

Medium

5

Group's
interest
A&
Frih e

100%
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